
    

A few welcoming notes:   
The board’s meeting time is dedicated to its strategic mission and top priorities. • The “consent agenda” has items which have either been discussed 
prior or are highly routine. By not discussing these issues, we are able to spend time on our most important priorities.  • “Public participation” is an 
opportunity to present brief comments or pose questions to the board for consideration or follow-up.  Each person is asked to focus comments to five 
minutes.  The boundaries are designed to help keep the strategic meeting focused and in no way limits conversations beyond the board meeting. • Your 
insights are needed and welcomed and the board encourages you to request a meeting with any board member, should you have something to discuss. 
• If you are interested in helping the district’s achievement effort, please talk with any member of the leadership team or call the district office at 719-486-
6800.   Opportunities abound.  Your participation is highly desired. 

 

District 

Mission: 

To ignite a 

passion for 

learning. 

 

Board 

Priorities: 

Ensure all students 

stay on or above 

grade level each year 

and graduate prepared 

to successfully 

implement a plan for 

college or career. 

Every day, we are 

college or career 

ready. 

Provide all students 

with engaging 

learning 

opportunities. 

Rigor and 

engagement are 

everywhere.  

Create a space that is 

safe, inclusive and 

welcoming for all.  

Diversity and 

culture make us 

better.  

Plan and execute the 

capital and human 

capital investments 

that will make our 

district better. 

We plan for the 

future. 

 

 

 

Lake County School District Board of Education 

March 13, 2018  7:00pm  Regular Meeting 

Location: Lake County Intermediate School Library 

 
1. 7:00 Call to order 

2. 7:01 Pledge of Allegiance 

3. 7:02 Roll Call 

4. 7:03 Preview Agenda 

5. 7:04 Reading/Energize item-Amy Frykholm 

6. 7:05 Public Participation 
Members of the public who wish to address the board on non-agenda items are welcome to do so at this time. Please sign up on the 

clipboard at the front. We ask you to please observe the following guidelines: 
 Confine your comments to matters that are germane to the business of the School District.  

 Recognize that students often attend or view our meetings.  Speaker’s remarks, therefore, should be suitable for an audience 

that includes kindergarten through twelfth grade students. 

 Understand that the board cannot discuss specific personnel matters or specific students in a public forum. 

7. 7:10  Approve Consent Agenda: 

a. Regular Meeting Minutes Feb. 13, 2018 

b. Special Meeting Minutes Feb. 27, 2018 

c. Personnel recommendations 

8. 7:12 Oversight Calendar 

a. Lake County Intermediate School Update-Stephanie Gallegos 

9.   7:45 ERSEA (Eligibility, Recruitment, Selection, Enrollment and Attendance)Training-Tanya 

Lenhard/Lisa Roeder 

10.   8:00 Superintendent’s Update 

a. Celebrations/Student Achievement/Culture Update 

11.   8:15 Student Reports 

12.   Break 

13.   8:30  Action Item 

a. BOCES IGA 

b. URA (Urban Renewal Authority) IGA 

c. Superintendent’s Evaluation 

d. Second Reading and adoption of policies: GP-2, GP-5 and GP-9 

14.  8:55  Board Reports 

15.  9:00  Agenda Planning 

a. Reading/Energize item for next meeting 

b. Work Shop planning-Keith Moffett and Katie Baldassar to attend meeting 

c. Next Meetings:    

i. March 27, 2018 Work Session  6:30 pm @ District Office 

ii. March 28, 2018 LCIS Walk Through 9:30 am@ LCIS 

iii. April 10, 2018 Regular Meeting 7:00 pm @ WPE Library 

16. Meeting Debrief 

d. How did we do on time? 

e. Did we do our most important work first? 

17. Adjournment                          
 

 

Estimated duration of meeting is 2.5 to 3 hours      **Updated 3/6/2018 



 

SCHOOL BOARD MINUTES 

Regular Meeting 

Feb. 13, 2018 

 

Pledge of Allegiance –Director Solomon led the pledge of allegiance. 

Roll Call of Members - The regular meeting of the Board of Directors for Lake County 

School District R-1 was called to order on Feb. 13, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. and was held at 

Lake County High School in the library.  Directors Fiedler, McBride, Solomon and 

Superintendent Wyman were present. Board president Frykholm was present via 

Facetime as see was out of town for work and joined the meeting at 7:15 pm. Student 

representative Bryce Allen and Emma Dallas were absent and excused.  

Preview Agenda –No changes were needed.  

Reading or Energize item- Wendy Wyman provided an energize item. 

Public Participation-Julie McCluskie, a candidate for State House District 61, was in 

attendance. She currently works for Summit County School District and oversees the Pre- 

Collegiate program.  

Approval of consent agenda items- It was moved by Director McBride to approve 

consent agenda.  Director Fiedler seconded the motion;  

 Contreras Fiedler  Frykholm McBride Solomon 

Aye X X  X X 

Nay      

Absent   X   

 

motion carried 5-0. 

 



Feb. 13, 2018 

Page 2 

Oversight Calendar-Ben Cairns, LCHS principal, gave an update on graduation 

requirements and the different pathways and certificates offered with CMC. He also 

reported on Panther Pride being restarted and Student Council.  Jeff  

Sailor spoke regarding the work around grade level organization and the supports that are 

in place. Jeff Spencer spoke in regards to common goals for classrooms, what 

expectations are and how they are hoping to be consistent school wide. Roxie Aldaz and 

Lindsay spoke in regards to how the department structure is comprised, Common 

Instructional Practices and the grading policy work that is going on at the high school. 

Kelly Hofer presented information in regards to the Pre-Collegiate program at the high 

school and how things have changed and grown over the past couple of years.  

Superintendent update- Wendy introduced Mariah Dickson, our new Collaborative 

Director and Aidan Fleming, the new District After School Program Director. She spoke 

about the great learning that she, Stephanie Gallegos and Cheryl Talbot got at conference 

in LA the Walton Family Foundation funded. She also shared more information on 

student in and out of our district.  

Student Representative Report: Both student representatives were absent so there were 

no reports.   

A short break was taken and the meeting resumed.  

Action Items- It was moved by Director McBride to approve the LCSD Master Plan 

Services contract with TreanorHL P.A.  Director Fiedler seconded the motion;  

 Contreras Fiedler  Frykholm McBride Solomon 

Aye X X X X X 

Nay      

Absent      

 

motion carried 5-0. 



Feb. 13, 2018 

Page 3 

It was moved by Director McBride to approve the first reading policies: GP-2, GP-5 and 

GP-9.  Director Contreras seconded the motion;  

 Contreras Fiedler  Frykholm McBride Solomon 

Aye X X X X X 

Nay      

Absent      

 

motion carried 5-0. 

Discussion item: Kate Bartlett was in attendance and spoke in regards to the URA 

(Urban Renewal Authority) with the county and gave an update.  

Board Reports- Director Frykholm spoke of going all over the state for ski meets and 

hearing lots about bringing Panther Pride back into the schools. Director Solomon spoke 

of going to Policy Council and the upcoming Family Fun Night at The Center. Director 

McBride spoke of planning on attending the URA board meeting and attending the 

basketball games where her daughter attend the cheerleading clinic. Director Fiedler 

spoke of the work around the Master Plan and planning to attend his first BOCES 

meeting. Director Contreras spoke of Padres & Jóvenes Unidos  and the work they are 

doing to try and get free lunches for all students, she also spoke of working with Cody 

Jump to plan how the student representative will work in the future. 

Agenda Planning- Amy Frykholm will do the energizer for next regular meeting.  There 

was a discussion about the questions for the Capital Plan Overview and Master plan 

update for the work session. Dates for a walk through for both LCHS and LCIS were 

planned.  

 

Meeting was debriefed and it was moved by Director Fiedler to adjourn the meeting. 

Director McBride seconded the motion; motion carried.  



Feb. 13, 2018 

Page 4 

Meeting adjourned at 9:18 pm.  

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________________ 

Jeff Fiedler, Secretary 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Amy Frykholm, President 



 

SCHOOL BOARD MINUTES 

Special Meeting 

Feb. 27, 2018 

 

Pledge of Allegiance –Director Frykholm led the pledge of allegiance. 

Roll Call of Members - The special meeting of the Board of Directors for Lake County 

School District R-1 was called to order on Feb. 27, 2018 at 6:34 p.m. and was held at the 

District Office.  Directors Contreras, Fiedler, Frykholm, McBride and Solomon were 

present. Superintendent Wyman was out of town and excused. Student representative 

Bryce Allen and Emma Dallas were present.  

Preview Agenda –NA  

Public Participation-N/A  

Consent Agenda- It was moved by Director Solomon to approve the Consent Agenda. 

Director McBride seconded the motion;  

 Contreras Fiedler  Frykholm McBride Solomon 

Aye X X X X X 

Nay      

Absent      

 

motion carried 5-0. 

It was moved by Director Fiedler to approve the IGA with BOCES. Director Solomon 

seconded the motion;  

The motion was tabled and will be added to the agenda for the March 13, 2018 meeting.  

 



Feb. 27, 2018 

Page 2 

Discussion items: Kate Bartlett was in attendance and gave an update on the URA. Kate 

also spoke in regards to wanting to do an RFP for next fiscal year for financial auditing 

services. Kate Bartlett led a discussion around school safety.  

 

It was moved by Director Solomon to adjourn the meeting. Director Fiedler seconded the 

motion; motion carried.  

Meeting adjourned at 7:56 p.m. 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________________ 

Jeff Fiedler, Secretary 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Amy Frykholm, President 



Lake County School District R-1
Employee Status Report

March 13, 2018

3/6/2018

Name     Assignment    Degree        License Experience

Name Current Assignment Transfer Assignment Location Effective

Cavanaugh, Michelle Science Teacher LCHS End of 2018 School Year

__________________________________ ___________________________________
Amy Frykholm, President Jeff Fiedler, Secretary

Certified Staff

Recommended for Hire

Transfers

Resignations/Terminations



Lake County School District R-1
Employee Status Report

March 13, 2018

3/6/2018

Brown, Julia 21st Century District
Mims, Whitney Substitute Teacher District
Trelka, Taylor Substitute Teacher District

Powell, Timothy Bus Driver to Maintenance Worker District

__________________________________ ___________________________________
Amy Frykholm, President Jeff Fiedler, Secretary

Support Staff/Classified

Recommended for Hire

Transfers

Resignations/Terminations



Lake County School District R-1
Employee Status Report

March 13, 2018

3/6/2018

Project Dream/Get Outdoors Leadville! (GOL!) Activity Leader District
Open Gym/Outdoor Club Instructor District

HS Volleyball
MS Soccer

Coaches/Athletics

Classified/Support Staff

Certified/Staff



LCIS: School Board Presentation 2018 
Pushing for a Strong Focused Finish 

O3 and Q4 Goals 

ELA / Content Math 

Text Focused Questions  
● Texts in front of students for all lessons 
● Targets and Focus Question drive the work of the 

whole lesson  
● Daily Exit Tickets or written responses to the Focus 

Question or a smaller supporting question  
● Deans and Principal Track Data 

○ Plans- Are teaching planning using the text 
first?  

○ Classroom Data (observation) 
○ Student work (student’s written responses to 

the text focus question) 
 
 
 
I can craft text based focus questions and Learning Targets for 
my lessons that create a coherent lesson flow and require 
students to engage in the text . 
 
I can create daily exit tickets or written responses that require 
students to respond to a focus question with evidence.  
 

Grade Level Standards and Rigor  
1. Learning Target Unpacked (and connected to 

student work and standard) 
2. Use of mathematical vocabulary. Evidence the 

vocabulary has been explicitly taught. 
3. Students are engaged in mathematical discourse. 
4. Protocol is being used. 
5. Students  are doing the majority of the work (not just 

copying teacher’s examples) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I can intentionally select a lesson format that aligns to the rigor 
of the standard and then test drive problems to analyze how 
students solve them and identify misconceptions. 
 
I can develop and maintain routines that maximize instructional 
time and support perseverance and engagement from students. 
 
I can use protocols that encourage participation and respectful 
discourse and enable students to connect to key concepts and 
build new understandings. 
 
I can track student’s progress toward mastery of LT’s regularly 



by using exit tickets, strategic conferring, andor formative 
assessments. 

Teacher Support Cycle (weekly feedback meeting, PD on 
Thursdays and monthly PD days) 

Teacher Support Cycle (weekly feedback meeting, PD on 
Thursdays and monthly PD days) 

1. Teacher and Dean / Principal co-plan a lesson 
2. Teacher teaches the lesson and Dean/Principal 

observe and / or video tape lesson. 
3. Teacher collects students work. 
4. Feedback meeting 

a. Areas of strength 
b. Area of grow 
c. Student Work- what trends or patterns is the 

work showing us? 
d. Instructional next steps based on what is 

identified in the student work (whole group, 
small group based on need) 

 
Cycle Repeats 

1. Teacher and Dean look closely at Engage NY math 
materials 

a. Determine how lessons and 
activities/questions align to standards 

b. Do the math 
i. Calibrate on success criteria and 

exemplar for student work and exit 
tickets 

ii. Identify common misconceptions and 
determine what to do about them in 
real time and how to adjust for 
tomorrow 

c. Model/practice concept development 
i. Currently for teachers learning content 

2. Standards Protocol 
3. PD 

a. Mathematical Shifts 
b. Vertical alignment for coherence 
c. Year at a Glance pacing maps 
d. Mathematical Discourse 
e. Common math classroom expectations 
f. Learning Labs (host teacher is observed by 

the rest of the math team) 
4. Observation / Feedback / Data Meetings  

a. (same as ELA) 
 



Walkthrough Tool 
ELA/Content               Classroom________________ 
Look Fors  Notes  

❏ Daily Focus 
Question based 
on text  

 

(Capture Question below)  
 
  

Learning Target 
 

(Capture Target below) 

❏ Text in front of 
students for the 
lesson?  

 

 

❏ Evidence-based 
and/or 
skills-based 
activities that 
lead students to 
answer focus 
question 

 

 

❏ Written 
Response/Exit 
Ticket on focus 
question through 
analysis of the 
text  

 

 

Challenge:  In an ELA classroom try and see if you can link the learning target with the standard. (Download the common core 
standards app) 



Math Classroom________________ 
Look Fors  Notes  

❏ Learning Target 
Unpacked 

(and connected to student 
work and standard) 
 

(Capture Target below) 
 
 
  

❏ Use of 
mathematical 
vocabulary. 
Evidence the 
vocabulary has 
been explicitly 
taught. 

 

❏ Students are 
engaged in 
mathematical 
discourse. 

Please note if a protocol is 
being used. 

 

❏ Students doing the 
majority of the 
work (not just 
copying teacher’s 
examples). 

 

Challenge:  In an math classroom try and see if you can link the learning target with the standard.  (Download the common core 
standards app) 
 
 
 
 



Culture 
 

Behavior Support  
 

● Implement Reward System 
● Create consistent routines for Threshold/Entry (add other  areas our culture data shows need attention) 
● Decrease Send Out data  

 
I can nurture positive relationships with students through the structure of crew and the spirit of crew throughout the day.  

 
Walkthrough Tool 
 

Threshold Data Tracking  Classroom_______________________ 

Teacher Expectations at Threshold/Entry Student Expectations at Threshold/Entry 

Threshold 
_______ Active supervision in the hall 
_______ Uses an attention getter  
_______ Give concise directions 
_______ set expectations for Do Now 
_______ Give time limit 
_______ Greet students with a smile 
_______Narrating the positive of compliant students inside the room and in the line 
_______handing out habit tickets 
 
Entry 
_______circulating the room to monitor the  
 
Do Now 
_______ consistent place for the students to find the Do Now 
_______ narrating the positive 
_______ Do Now is only between 3-5 minutes long 
_______timer is used to track this time 
_______handing out habit tickets 
 

Threshold 
_______HALL 
_______voice level zero 
_______Tracking the teacher 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Entry 
_______Students silently walk in 
_______Begin working within 60 seconds 
_______Work time is independent  



The Center 
Early Childhood Programs 

Lake County School District R-1 
 
 

Head Start, Colorado Preschool Program, Tuition-Based Preschool and School Age Programs, Services for Children with Special Needs 

 
    

Head Start Approval Items for Governing Board 
 

Contents:  

 

 

1. ERSEA (Eligibility, Recruitment, Selection, Enrollment, and Attendance) Materials 

**These resources will be referenced as we provide training to the board on ERSEA including the 

system we use to support this process and our current policies. 

 

 

 

315 West 6th Street 
Leadville, CO 80461 
 
Phone 719 486-6928 
    Fax 719 486-9992 











































LCSD Board Meeting – Superintendent Update 2-7-18 

Celebration 

 CDE Promising Practices video in progress. 

                                                           

Student Achievement 

 Current ANet Results are attached. 

 

Culture Update 

 Schools re-norming after winter break update. 

 

 



3/7/2018 myANet

https://my.achievementnetwork.org/my/performance/school/grade?CustomSas=131&InterimGrade=0&School=17031&SchoolYear=2017&Subject=2 1/1

West Park Elementary School

School Performance Over Time by Grade
SchoolYear: 2017 Subject: ELA CustomSas: CrossNetwork Online ELA 17-18

InterimGrade: All Interim Grades Roll Up:

Metric: Average Network:96 of 218  Saved Filters

Average Interim 1 Interim 2

50%

0%

100%

46% 47% 47%
50% 51% 49%

Interim Grade 

Average Interim 1 Interim 2 Interim 3

School Network School Network School Network School Network

Interim Grade 2 46% -5% 47% -5% 47% -2% 40% -11%



3/7/2018 myANet

https://my.achievementnetwork.org/my/performance/school/grade?CustomSas=-1&InterimGrade=0&School=17031&SchoolYear=2017&Subject=1 1/1

West Park Elementary School

School Performance Over Time by Grade
SchoolYear: 2017 Subject: Math

CustomSas: EngageNY-Aligned Online Math 17-18 InterimGrade: All Interim Grades Roll Up:

Metric: Average Network:143 of 217  Saved Filters

Average Interim 1 Interim 2

50%

0%

100%

52%
47%

55%
52% 50%

53%

Interim Grade 

Average Interim 1 Interim 2 Interim 3

School Network School Network School Network School Network

Interim Grade 2 52% 0% 47% -3% 55% 1% 58% 2%



3/7/2018 myANet

https://my.achievementnetwork.org/my/performance/school/grade?CustomSas=138&InterimGrade=0&School=16217&SchoolYear=2017&Subject=2 1/2

Lake County Intermediate School

School Performance Over Time by Grade
SchoolYear: 2017 Subject: ELA

CustomSas: EL Education-Aligned Online ELA 17-18 InterimGrade: All Interim Grades Roll Up:

Metric: Average Network:53 of 71  Saved Filters

Average Interim 1 Interim 2

50%

0%

100%

39% 40% 40%41% 42% 40%

Interim Grade 

Average Interim 1 Interim 2 Interim 3

School Network School Network School Network School Network

Interim Grade 3 35% -7% 36% -7% 34% -8% 36% -10%

Interim Grade 4 39% -6% 41% -7% 42% -1% 33% 0%

Interim Grade 5 37% -3% 37% -3% 34% -6% 41% 0%



3/7/2018 myANet

https://my.achievementnetwork.org/my/performance/school/grade?CustomSas=138&InterimGrade=0&School=16217&SchoolYear=2017&Subject=2 2/2

Interim Grade 

Average Interim 1 Interim 2 Interim 3

School Network School Network School Network School Network

Interim Grade 6 43% 6% 44% 5% 46% 10% 38% 3%



3/7/2018 myANet

https://my.achievementnetwork.org/my/performance/school/grade?CustomSas=-1&InterimGrade=0&School=16217&SchoolYear=2017&Subject=1 1/2

Lake County Intermediate School

School Performance Over Time by Grade
SchoolYear: 2017 Subject: Math

CustomSas: EngageNY-Aligned Online Math 17-18 InterimGrade: All Interim Grades Roll Up:

Metric: Average Network:213 of 331  Saved Filters

Average Interim 1 Interim 2

50%

0%

100%

36% 36%
39%39% 38% 39%

Interim Grade 

Average Interim 1 Interim 2 Interim 3

School Network School Network School Network School Network

Interim Grade 3 40% -3% 36% -7% 43% -1% - -

Interim Grade 4 34% -4% 30% -6% 36% -2% - -

Interim Grade 5 35% -4% 38% 0% 40% -1% 27% -13%



3/7/2018 myANet

https://my.achievementnetwork.org/my/performance/school/grade?CustomSas=-1&InterimGrade=0&School=16217&SchoolYear=2017&Subject=1 2/2

Interim Grade 

Average Interim 1 Interim 2 Interim 3

School Network School Network School Network School Network

Interim Grade 6 37% 1% 39% 4% 38% 3% 34% -8%



3/7/2018 myANet

https://my.achievementnetwork.org/my/performance/school/grade?CustomSas=131&InterimGrade=0&School=100224&SchoolYear=2017&Subject=2 1/2

Lake County High School (7-12)

School Performance Over Time by Grade
SchoolYear: 2017 Subject: ELA CustomSas: CrossNetwork Online ELA 17-18

InterimGrade: All Interim Grades Roll Up:

Metric: Average Network:90 of 107  Saved Filters

Average Interim 1 Interim 2

50%

0%

100%

40%
43%

39%
44% 46%

43%

Interim Grade 

Average Interim 1 Interim 2 Interim 3

School Network School Network School Network School Network

Interim Grade 7 39% -5% 42% -5% 38% -4% 39% -7%

Interim Grade 8 41% -3% 45% 0% 40% -3% 39% -4%



3/7/2018 myANet

https://my.achievementnetwork.org/my/performance/school/grade?CustomSas=131&InterimGrade=0&School=100224&SchoolYear=2017&Subject=2 2/2



3/7/2018 myANet

https://my.achievementnetwork.org/my/performance/school/grade?CustomSas=-1&InterimGrade=0&School=100224&SchoolYear=2017&Subject=1 1/2

Lake County High School (7-12)

School Performance Over Time by Grade
SchoolYear: 2017 Subject: Math

CustomSas: EngageNY-Aligned Online Math 17-18 InterimGrade: All Interim Grades Roll Up:

Metric: Average Network:142 of 167  Saved Filters

Average
0%

100%

29% 29%
33%

Interim Grade 

Average Interim 2

School Network School Network

Interim Grade 7 25% -6% 25% -6%

Interim Grade 8 34% -1% 34% -1%



3/7/2018 myANet

https://my.achievementnetwork.org/my/performance/school/grade?CustomSas=-1&InterimGrade=0&School=100224&SchoolYear=2017&Subject=1 2/2





















Leadville Urban Renewal Authority IGA Cover Note 

The attached IGA is presented for your consideration and approval. The key points are 

as follows: 

1) The IGA includes language that the City agrees to adopt a land dedication 

ordinance into the city code (one does not currently exist) that is generally 

satisfactory to LCSD. 

2) The IGA includes language that LCSD may renegotiate its tax increment revenue 

sharing agreement with LURA should the state legislature ever reduce the 

Backfill Amount. This language is our protection for ensuring that our revenue 

through the school finance formula remains whole. 

3) The IGA provides a 10% shareback of tax increment revenue from the plan 

revenue to LCSD. This should equate to approximately $26,000 annually in extra 

revenue for the district. 



 

AGREEMENT REGARDING LEADVILLE URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING 

 

 This AGREEMENT REGARDING LEADVILLE URBAN RENEWAL 

AUTHORITY TAX INCREMENT FINANCING (the “Agreement”) is entered into by and 

among the CITY OF LEADVILLE (“City”), a municipal corporation and political subdivision 

of the State of Colorado; the LEADVILLE URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY (“LURA”), 

an urban renewal authority and body corporate and politic of the State of Colorado, and the 

LAKE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT R-1  (the “District”), a body corporate and political 

subdivision of the State of Colorado (each party individually referred to herein as a “Party” and 

collectively referred to herein as the “Parties”).  

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Colorado Urban Renewal Law, Section 31-25-101, et seq., 

C.R.S. (the “Act”), the City Council of the City formed LURA by Resolution No. 08, Series 

2017; and  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the City Council of the City is considering adoption of 

an urban renewal plan (the “Plan”) to carry out urban renewal projects within the Urban Renewal 

Plan Area (“Plan Area”) described with particularity in the Plan; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the District is a taxing entity whose boundary includes real property within 

the boundary of LURA; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Act authorizes, and the Plan will provide, for the use of tax increment 

financing by LURA to assist with the development of projects subject to approval of a 

development agreement between LURA and a property owner or developer; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Act provides for the division of taxes collected from the taxable 

property within a plan area in the following order: first, to existing taxing districts of the base 

amount determined in accordance with statute; second, to any bonds, loans, or advances to, or 

indebtedness incurred by, any urban renewal project or to make payments under an agreement 

executed pursuant to C.R.S § 31-25-107(11); and third, upon payment of such bonds, loans, 

advances, indebtedness, and contractual obligations, to the respective taxing entities; and 

 

WHEREAS, C.R.S. § 31-25-107(9.5) requires that the Plan may be adopted with a 

provision for tax increment financing and that LURA and the District must enter into an 

agreement regarding the sharing of incremental property tax revenue; and 

 

WHEREAS, C.R.S. § 31-25-107(9) requires that revenues from a property tax mill levy 

increase approved by District voters in the future be paid to the District; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties recognize that this Agreement satisfies the requirements of 

C.R.S. 31-25-107(9.5).  

 



 

2 

 

 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing Recitals, which are incorporated 

herein, the mutual covenants and promises set forth herein, and other good and valuable 

consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto 

agree as follows:  

 

1. Incorporation of Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are incorporated into and 

made a part of this Agreement. 

2. District Mill Levy Allocation and Payment.  The District agrees that  

LURA may retain all incremental property tax revenues generated in the Plan Area solely as a 

result of the levy of the District’s mill levy upon taxable property within the Plan Area except 

that after deducting LURA’s Administrative Fee and upon receipt of TIF Revenues, LURA shall 

calculate and deposit into the School District Account, the TIF Shareback. LURA agrees to hold 

and earn interest on the amounts deposited in the School District Account in investments 

permitted by Colorado law which investments shall mature or be subject to redemption by 

LURA without penalty on or before the date LURA is required to pay amounts in the School 

District Account to the District. On or about August 1 or within sixty (60) days of receipt from 

Lake County, whichever occurs first, and beginning in the first year in which TIF Revenues are 

received by LURA and annually thereafter, LURA shall pay to the District all amounts on 

deposit in the School District Account. If the voters of the District approve an increase in 

property taxes in the future, LURA agrees to pay to the District an amount equal to the mill levy 

imposed pursuant to any such voter approval times the incremental assessed value within the 

Plan Area if LURA receives such amount.  LURA shall pay the amounts due to the District 

pursuant to the preceding sentence to the District on or before the 15
th

 day of the month 

immediately succeeding the month in which any such amount is received by LURA.   

3. Land Dedication Ordinance.  The City agrees to present and consider an 

ordinance, generally satisfactory to the District, requiring subdividers in the City to dedicate 

school land to the City on behalf of the District or to make a payment in lieu of dedication (the 

“Ordinance”).   

4. Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall 

have the following definitions: 

 

a) Administrative Fee means a fee to cover LURA’s administrative expenses 

associated with collection, accounting and distribution of TIF Shareback in an 

amount equal to one percent (1%) of the total revenues received from Lake 

County generated from that portion of property taxes levied by the School District 

in excess of the amount of base property taxes paid into the fund of the School 

District in accordance with C.R.S. § 31-25-107(9)(a)(I).  

 



 

3 

 

b) Backfill Amount means State of Colorado’s (the “State”) contribution towards the 

District’s total program funding as determined pursuant to Title 22, Article 54, 

Part 1 of C.R.S. in an amount equal to the mill levy imposed by the District 

pursuant to C.R.S. §22-54-106 times the incremental assessed value within the 

Plan Area.  

 

c) District means the Lake County School District R-1, a body corporate and 

political subdivision of the State of Colorado. 

 

d) Leadville Urban Renewal Authority means the urban renewal authority created by 

the City Council of the City of Leadville, Colorado pursuant to Resolution No. 08, 

Series 2017. 

 

e) Plan means the urban renewal plan adopted or to be adopted by the Leadville 

Urban Renewal Authority known as the Central Leadville Urban Renewal Plan. 

 

f) Plan Area means the area described in the Central Leadville Urban Renewal Plan 

as more specifically and legally described in Exhibit A to the Plan. 

 

g) School District Account means a separate interest-bearing account held by LURA 

for the benefit of the School District in which is deposited the revenues of the 

District’s TIF Shareback. 

 

h) TIF Shareback means an amount equal to ten percent (10%) of the total 

incremental property tax revenues generated in the Plan Area calculated in 

accordance with C.R.S. § 31-25-107(9)(a)(II) and received by LURA, solely as a 

result of the levy of the School District’s mill levy upon taxable property within 

the Plan Area. 

 

5. Term, Termination.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on the 

date of mutual execution of this Agreement by the Parties, and shall run for a term of Twenty-

five (25) years following the formal adoption of the Plan unless terminated earlier due to the 

abolishment of LURA or termination of the Plan.  This Agreement may be terminated at any 

time upon the mutual written agreement of the Parties.  This Agreement shall terminate if the 

City repeals or modifies the Ordinance without the consent of the District. 

6. Modification. This Agreement may not be amended, modified, or 

changed, in whole or in part, without a written agreement executed by the Parties. The Parties 

agree to negotiate in good faith to amend this Agreement if the State ever reduces the Backfill 

Amount. The District shall give written notice to LURA that the State has reduced the Backfill 

Amount.  If, after a period of one hundred twenty days from the date of notice or such longer or 

shorter period as LURA and the District may agree, there is no agreement between LURA and 

the District,  LURA and the District shall submit to mediation on the issue of appropriate sharing 

of incremental property tax revenues and urban renewal project costs between LURA and the 

District  The mediation must be conducted by a mediator who has been jointly selected by the 

LURA and the District; except that, if LURA and the District are unable to agree on the selection 

of a mediator, then LURA shall select one mediator, the District shall select a second mediator, 



 

4 

 

and these two mediators shall then select a third mediator. In such circumstances, the mediation 

will be jointly conducted by the three mediators. Unless LURA and the District otherwise agree, 

any mediator selected must be an attorney licensed in the state for at least ten years and must be 

experienced in both land use and administrative law. Payment of the fees and costs for the 

mediation must be split equally between LURA and the District. 

In making a determination of the appropriate sharing, the mediator must consider: (i) the 

nature of the project, (ii) the nature and relative size of the revenue and other benefits that are 

expected to accrue to LURA and the District as a result of the project, (iiito what extent, if any, 

the State will replace the Backfill Amount with a funding source which is not available to a 

school district which does not have a tax increment area within its boundaries, (iv) any legal 

limitations on the use of revenues belonging to LURA or the District, and (v) any capital or 

operating costs that are expected to result from the project. Within ninety days, the mediator 

must issue his or her findings of fact as to the appropriate sharing of costs and incremental 

property tax revenues, and shall promptly transmit such information to LURA and the District. 

Following the issuance of findings by the mediator, LURA and the District shall incorporate the 

mediator's findings into this Agreement. 

 

7. Assignment. No Party shall assign this Agreement or any interest 

hereunder in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of each of the other Parties. Any 

assignment attempted without the prior written consent of all Parties hereto, which consent shall 

not be unreasonably withheld, shall be deemed void, and of no force or effect. Consent to one 

assignment shall not be deemed to be consent to any subsequent assignment nor the waiver of 

any right to consent to such subsequent assignment.  Notwithstanding the foregoing this 

Agreement may be assigned to the successor entity of the District or to the District's constituent 

entities.  

8. Notices. Any notices or other communications required or permitted by 

this Agreement or by law to be served on, given to or delivered to any Party hereto, by any other 

Party shall be in writing and shall be deemed duly served, given or delivered when personally 

delivered to the Party to whom it is addressed or in lieu of such personal service, upon receipt in 

the United States’ mail, first-class postage prepaid, addressed as follows:  

 

To the District:     With a copy to: 

Lake County School District R-1  Butler Snow LLP 

107 Spruce Street  Attn: Dee P.Wisor 

Leadville, Colorado 80461  1801California Street, Suite 5100  

  Denver, Colorado 80202 

 

To the City and LURA:     With a copy to: 

City of Leadville   Michow, Cox & McAskin, LLP 

Leadville LURA   Attn: Linda C. Michow 

800 Harrison Ave.  6530 S. Yosemite St., Suite 200 

Leadville, CO 80461  Greenwood Village, Colorado 80111 

  



 

5 

 

Any Party may change its address for the purpose of this Paragraph by giving written notice of 

such change to the other Parties in the manner provided in this Paragraph.  

 

9. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and together shall constitute one and the 

same instrument. 

10. Binding Agreement. This Agreement shall inure to and be binding on the 

administrator, successors, and permitted assigns of the Parties hereto.  

11. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the complete and exclusive 

statement of the agreement of the Parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and 

supersedes all prior oral and written proposals, negotiations, representations, promises, 

agreements, warranties or understandings concerning such subject matter.  

12. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court 

of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall 

nonetheless remain in full force and effect. 

13. Governmental Immunity.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as 

a waiver of the rights and privileges of the Parties pursuant to the Colorado Governmental 

Immunity Act, § 24-10-101, et seq., C.R.S., as the same may be amended from time to time. 

14. Authority to Enter Into Agreement. Each Party hereby confirms it is 

lawfully authorized to enter into this Agreement, has received legal counsel and advice as to the 

legal effect of this Agreement, and has taken all steps necessary to authorize the execution of the 

Agreement by the respective signatories below.  

 

[The remainder of this page is left intentionally blank.  Signature page follows.] 

  



 

6 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement as of the day 

and year first above written.  

 

CITY OF LEADVILLE, a municipal corporation 

and political subdivision of the State of Colorado: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Greg Labbe, Mayor 

ATTEST:  

 

       

 

By:       

 

Its:       

 

       

 

Approved as to form: 

 

             

City Attorney 

 

 

LEADVILLE URBAN RENEWAL 

AUTHORITY, an urban renewal authority:  

  

 

__________________________________  

Chairperson  

ATTEST:  

 

       

 

By:       

 

Its:       

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

             

LURA Counsel 



 

7 

 

LAKE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT R-1, a 

body corporate and political subdivision of the State 

of Colorado:  

 

       

 

By:        

President 

 

ATTEST:  

 

  

 

By:         

 Secretary 

 

  

 

  

  



 

8 

 

 

 

 

39323667v2 

41089447v1 



Annual Evaluation of Dr. Wendy Wyman,  

Superintendent, Lake County School District 

Fall 2016-Fall 2017 

 

On January 9, 2018, the Lake County School District R-1 Board of Education held its 

annual evaluation with Dr. Wendy Wyman and discussed her performance over the last 

12 months in her fifth year as superintendent of the Lake County School District. Present 

were directors Amy Frykholm, Stephanie McBride, Ellie Solomon, Jeff Fiedler, and 

Eudelia Contreras, as well as Superintendent Wendy Wyman. As per Board Policy BSR-

5, evaluation of the Superintendent happens annually and is based on the Board’s district 

priorities and goals as articulated in the strategic plan.  

 

 

Lake County School District Context 

 

The Lake County School District (LCSD) is comprised of four schools in Lake County, 

Colorado. The population of Lake County was estimated to be 7,310 people in the 2010 

census, with 57% of the population identifying as Anglo and 40% of the population 

identifying as Latino or Hispanic. Of those in Lake County five years of age or older in 

2012, 29.4% were estimated to speak a language other than English. The majority of 

these are Spanish speaking. In the school district, 70% of students are Hispanic or Latino, 

67% qualify for free or reduced lunch, and 35% are considered English-language 

learners. The number of students in the district is 1074.  

 

This year, the Colorado Department of Education rated all of our schools and the district 

as “performing.” Two schools (Pitts Elementary and West Park Elementary)  not given  

ratings, because these schools do not take state assessments.  Working with the 

Instructional Leadership Team and the Principal at West Park the District rated West 

Park as Improving.  Pitts Elementary houses the Center; it does not get a rating because it 

is a preschool program. The Center, however, continues to perform well on its 

evaluations—both internal and external. West Park continues to demonstrate academic 

progress. We are very excited about the fact that all of our schools are off the turnaround 

clock. At the same time, to keep our schools performing and to move the district toward 

the highest rating, we must continue to work hard.  

 

Over Wyman’s tenure, we have seen significant improvements in nearly all aspects of the 

school district: infrastructure, cultures of learning, district communication, leadership, 

resource alignment, and parent engagement. These areas have all needed and received 

attention, and data suggest that we are improving in all of these areas. Some of that 

improvement is detailed below, but some of it is not easy to document. We believe 



strongly that the environment for learning has improved dramatically at our schools over 

the last few years, and we think this is best experienced in person. Dr. Wyman has spent 

much of her first few years working to improve infrastructure and systems in the school 

district in order to create conditions in which instruction and learning can improve. As 

will be described in detail below, we continue to focus our attention on academic 

improvements, as we believe that we have built the foundation for this more singular 

focus.  

 

We are very proud of what Lake County Schools has accomplished under Wyman’s 

leadership and this year, the board recommended Wendy Wyman for the Superintendent 

of the Year. We noted especially her courage in pursuing a path of reform and 

transformation.  

 

The Strategic Plan 

In 2015, the Board passed a three-year strategic plan for academic years 2015-2016, 

2016-2017, and 2017-2018. This strategic plan was based on four district-wide priorities: 

 

1) Ensure all students stay on or above grade level each year and graduate prepared to 

successfully implement a plan for college or career. Every day, we are college or 

career-ready.  

2) Provide all students with engaging learning opportunities. Rigor and engagement are 

everywhere.  

3) Create a space that is safe, inclusive and welcoming for all. Diversity and culture 

make us better.  

4) Plan and execute the capital and human capital investments that will make our district 

better. We plan for the future. 

 

Each priority included specific goals and metrics, and during the evaluation, Dr. Wyman 

detailed our progress on each of these. 

 

Evaluation 

 

PRIORITY #1: Every day we are college and career-ready. 

GOAL #1: Implement ICAP 

16-17 Metric: The new ICAP structure will be fully implemented grades 9-12 with 

growth in at least two areas of the assessment.  

Dr. Wyman’s written comments: This goal has been met. Our score in the readiness 

assessment has increased from 118 to 190. 



 

Dr. Wyman’s spoken comments:  Every student at LCHS now has an ICAP that they use 

toward the planning of their graduation. This is the plan that students do at the high 

school level in order to be college and career ready. Because of the graduation 

requirements, it has been transformed into a useful tool for teachers, students, and 

parents to think about their futures.  

Board comments: The strategic plan treats the ICAP as a fairly major level that we can 

use to drive this goal forward. This kind of work on graduation requirements has put us 

on the cutting edge of how schools structure graduation requirements.  

 

Priority #2: Rigor and engagement are everywhere. 

GOAL #2: All schools will have an instructional and professional development focus 

that supports student access to complex, grade-level appropriate texts. 

Metric: PARCC 2016 +3% improvement in a language arts area. Increase the percent of 

students scoring at benchmark on DIBELS by 3% 

Dr. Wyman’s written comments: 

While our growth data is strong overall, this goal has been met for 8 out of 11 

Assessments or 73% (This is stronger than last year when we met the goal for 7 out of 

11 assessments or 64%) 

.  

DIBELS  

 K EOY: 79%-69%  (2016 50%) (EOY is End of Year) (DNM -1%) 

 1st EOY: 44-70% (2016 43%-68%) (Met +26%) 

 2nd EOY: 47-46% (2016 40%-51%) (DNM -1%) 

 3rd EOY: 41%-56% (2016 33%-48%) (Met +15%) 

 4th EOY: 66-43% (DNM -23%) 

PARCC (meets or exceeds standards)  

 3rd ELA: 12%-16% (Met +4%) 



 4th ELA WrExp: 12%-25% (Met +13%)  

 5th ELA: 14%-25% (Met +11%)  

 6th ELA: 22%-26% (Met +4%)  

 7th ELA: 5%-28% (Met +23%) 

 8th ELA: 9%-44% (Met +35%) 

 9th LitText: 15%-23% (Met +8%) 

Dr. Wyman’s spoken comments: We are very excited about our progress on this goal 

and this kind of growth is why we are no longer on the turnaround clock. However, we 

must move from growth to proficiency, and there is still a long way to go here. I would 

say that Colorado sets the standards too low. We need to drive toward 80% proficiency, 

and the conversation that we are engaged in is how quickly we can get there and by 

what means.  

Board: The Board thinks that Dr. Wyman’s intent to focus clearly on this goal is a good 

call, and as a Board, we support it. We had put a 3% growth on the strategic plan hoping 

that that would be a conservative goal. We are glad we are growing faster than 

anticipated. This raises important questions about the next strategic plan and what 

kinds of goals we should set.  

Priority #3: Diversity and culture make us better. 

Goal #3: All schools will have a professional development focus on climate and culture 

that supports building relational trust between all stakeholders. 

Metric: The surveys which we used to write the master plan have since not proven 

useful and were not administered. The alternative is described by Dr. Wyman below.  

Dr. Wyman’s written comments:  This year we are beginning a new group of climate 

and culture surveys in partnership with Panorama. Surveys were administered in 

December. Once schools have a chance to reflect on their data, it will be shared with the 

board. We are also in the process of administering a family survey. 

Dr. Wyman’s spoken comments: We are making progress on this goal.  

Board comments: None. 



 

Priority #4: “We plan for the future.” 

Goal #1: Create a 5-year capital plan.  

Metric: Engage a master plan firm  

Dr. Wyman’s written comments: This goal was met. We began the process in 

December. Due to budget concerns in the last school year, it was decided to postpone 

the master planning process until the current school year. The Master Planning partner 

has been selected [update: the school board has approved a contract with TreanorHL, 

P.A.]. 

Dr. Wyman’s comments: None. 

Board comments: None. 

 

Goal #2: Create a new recruiting and hiring process.  

Metric: Create an appropriate staffing level system. 

Dr. Wyman’s written comments: This goal was met as we are implementing hiring 

processes that were learned during professional development provided by the 

Turnaround Network at CDE. We are still working on deciphering appropriate staffing 

levels in our special education department. The special education leadership team is 

working on this over the spring of 2018. We are also working with CDE on this effort. 

Dr. Wyman’s spoken comments: None. 

Board comments: None. 

 

Overall superintendent comments:  

Wyman says that her goal is to hire people who are high quality and get out of their 

way.  This is something that we will need to think about when we are hiring the next 

superintendent. How will the next superintendent interact with these existing programs 

like the School Based Health Center? Another important question is: how will we 



maintain our reform efforts? What reform efforts do we want to keep and how will we 

ensure institutional memory?  

Wyman notes that we need to be aware that we could go back on the Turnaround Clock 

if we can’t sustain the growth levels that we are seeing, but we also don’t see kids 

moving to proficiency. This is a real possibility that the board and community need to be 

aware of. But we have to get passed a mindset that we can’t get where we need to go.  

See the attached list of additional achievements.  

 

Overall Board comments:  

We are pleased with the comprehensive look at culture questions and there was real 

movement forward to look at the whole system and address how diversity and culture 

are functioning in our system.  

We understand the need to keep pushing the academic goals and to systematize our 

progress so that we can keep moving forward.   

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

Every day, we are college and career ready. 

We ensure all students stay on or above grade level each year and graduate 

prepared to successfully implement a plan for college or career. 

 

 We are working with the Achievement Network (ANet) to ensure that all students 

have access to grade level standards every day 

http://www.achievementnetwork.org/.  

 Weekly meetings with school leadership teams focus on this standards-based work.  

We have changed the makeup of the leadership teams to ensure all teachers 

receive support. 

 We are working on creating an internal principal pipeline. 

 We are still successfully participating in the Colorado Department of Education’s 

(CDE) Turnaround Network 

https://www.cde.state.co.us/accountability/turnaroundnetwork.  

 Superintendent completed Relay Principal Managers Graduate Program 

https://www.relay.edu/. 

 

Rigor and engagement are everywhere. 

We provide all students with engaging learning opportunities. 

 

 We continue to work with partners, Expeditionary Learning, GOL and others to 

ensure that students are participating in engaging learning experiences. 

 

Diversity and culture make us better. 

We create a space that is safe, inclusive, and welcoming for all. 

 

 Several leaders participated in a recent community-based diversity training.  

 We are working with the Colorado Department of Education to arrange a 

diversity training for school leaders that will eventually also be offered to teachers 

and staff. 

 We worked with a group of bilingual, Latina parents to redesign the family liaison 

role into a Family Engagement Specialist role.  That same group of parents helped 

to hire the person now in the role.   

http://www.achievementnetwork.org/
https://www.cde.state.co.us/accountability/turnaroundnetwork
https://www.relay.edu/


 We continue to work with parents across parent groups to ensure that our schools 

are culturally responsive and welcoming to all parents. 

 We are working with Regis University in Denver to offer 12 hours of online credits 

towards receiving a culturally and linguistically diverse certificate.  

 

 

We plan for the future. 

We plan and execute the capital and human capital investments that will 

make our district better. 

 

 We have kicked off a master planning process with an experienced and proven 

partner. 

 We have obtained a large grant from the James Walton Fund and the Gates 

Family Foundation to ensure that our turnaround work is finished and 

institutionalized. 

 We continue to “right-size” and spend within our means. 

 We have raised substantial funds to support our work over the past several years 

and continue these efforts.  Including recent funding of over $900,000 over three 

years from the James Walton Fund and the Gates Family Foundation to 1) 

continue our turnaround work and ensure the systems supporting our successes 

are well established and sustainable and 2) share any aspects of our work that 

might be relevant and/or replicable for other rural turnaround districts.  

 

 

 



                                       GP-2 
 
 

 1 of 1 

Policy Type:  Governance Process 

 
Governing Style 

 
The Board will govern with emphasis on organizational vision rather than on interpersonal issues of 
the Board; encourage diversity in viewpoints; focus on strategic leadership rather than administrative 
detail; observe clear distinction between Board and Superintendent Roles; make collective rather 
than individual decisions; exhibit future orientation rather than past or present; and govern proactively 
rather than re-actively. 
 
Accordingly: 
 
1. The Board will cultivate a sense of group responsibility.  The Board will work in partnership with 

the Superintendent, staff, students, parents and the community.  The Board, not the 
Superintendent or staff, will be responsible for excellence in governing.  The Board will use the 
expertise of individual Board members to enhance the ability of the Board as a body, but will not 
substitute individual judgments for the Board’s collective values. 

 
2. The Board will hold itself accountable to govern with excellence.  This self-discipline will apply to 

matters such as attendance, preparation for meetings, policymaking principles, respect of roles 
and ensuring the continuity of governance capability. 

 
3. The Board will direct, control and inspire the district through the careful establishment of written 

policies reflecting the Board’s values and perspectives.  The Board’s major policy focus will be 
on the intended long-term benefits for students, not on the administrative or programmatic 
means of attaining those benefits. 

 
4. Continuous Board development will include orientation of new members in the Board’s 

governance process and periodic Board discussion and evaluation of process to assure 
continued improvement. 

 
5. The Board will allow no officer, individual or committee of the Board to hinder or be an excuse for 

not fulfilling its commitments. 
 
6. The Board will monitor the Board’s process and performance at each meeting.  Self-monitoring 

will include comparison of Board activity and discipline to policies in the Governance Process 
and Board/Superintendent Relationship categories. 

 
7. The Board will make no decision without full consideration of all available data, which may include 

but are not limited to: community input, Superintendent reports, student achievement results and 
assessments of the environment of all students and staff. 

 
[Revised March 2018] 
LAKE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT R-1, LEADVILLE, COLORADO 



                                       GP-5 
 
 

 1 of 1 

Policy Type:  Governance Process 

 

President’s Role 
 
 
The President of the Board ensures the integrity of the Board’s processes and normally serves as the 
Board’s official spokesperson.  Accordingly, the President has the following authority and duties: 
  
1. Monitor Board behavior to ensure that it is consistent with its own rules and policies and those 

legitimately imposed on it from outside the organization. 
 

a. Conduct and monitor Board meeting deliberations to ensure that only Board issues, as 
defined in Board policy, are discussed. 

 

b. Ensure that Board meeting deliberations are fair, open and thorough, but also efficient, timely, 
orderly and to the point. 

 

c. Chair Board meetings with all the commonly-accepted power of that position as described in 
Robert’s Rules of Order and in accordance with law. 

 
2. Make interpretive decisions that fall within the topics covered by Board policies on Governance 

Process and Board/Superintendent Relationship, except where the Board specifically delegates 
portions of this authority to others, using any reasonable interpretation of the provisions in those 
policies: 

 

 

a. Refrain from exercising any authority as an individual to supervise or direct the 
Superintendent. 

 
3. Represent the Board to outside parties in announcing Board-stated positions and in stating 

decisions and interpretations within the areas delegated to the President, delegating this 
authority to other Board members when appropriate, but remaining accountable for its use. 

 
4. Sign all contracts authorized by the Board. 
 
5. Sign all official Board reports. 
 
In the absence or inability of the President, the Vice President has all of the powers and duties of the 
President. 
 
 
 
 
[Revised March 2018] 
LAKE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT R-1, LEADVILLE, COLORADO 



                                       GP-9 
 
 

 1 of 1 

Policy Type:  Governance Process 

 
 

Board Member Covenants 
 
 
In order to build efficient and effective relationships, Board members shall establish a system of 
communication that builds on mutual expectation and trust. 
 
Accordingly, we will: 
 
1. exercise honesty in all communication. 
2. demonstrate respect for each other’s opinions. 
3. focus on issues, not personalities. 
4. assume and practice trust. 
5. maintain focus on shared goals. 
6. communicate in a timely manner to avoid surprises. 
7. openly support majority decisions of the board. 
8. withhold judgment on issues until fully informed. 
9. seek first to understand rather than be understood. 
10. criticize privately, praise publicly. 
11. use executive sessions appropriately and judiciously. 
12. maintain confidentiality. 
13. respect defined roles and follow the chain of command. 
14. openly share personal concerns, issues and agendas. 
15. assume a non-defensive posture, taking the initiative to communicate and ask questions for 

clarification. 
16. share information and knowledge. 
17. give direction as the whole, not as individuals. 
18. make every reasonable effort to protect the integrity and promote the positive image of the district 

and one another. 
 
We will not: 
 
1. embarrass each other or the district. 
2. intentionally mislead or misinform each other. 
3. maintain hidden agendas. 
4. fail to keep the district office informed of our location/activity. 
 
 
 
 
 
[Revised March 2018] 
LAKE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT R-1, LEADVILLE, COLORADO 


	March 13, 2018 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Consent agenda
	Feb. 13, 2018 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Feb. 27, 2018 Special Meeting Minutes
	Personnel recommendations

	Oversight Calendar
	LCIS Update

	ERSEA Training
	Superintendent Update
	WPE ANET
	LCIS ANET
	LCHS ANET

	Action Items
	BOCES IGA
	URA IGA Cover Sheet
	URA IGA

	Superintendent Evaluation
	Goals with accomplishments

	Second Reading and Adoption of policies
	GP-2
	GP-5
	GP-9



